

**Feb. 11, 2020**  
**West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee**  
**Minutes**

**Present:** Mike Colaneri, Ted Jochsberger, Susan Silk and Rise Terney

**Absent with Regrets:** Larry Schubert, Jeffrey Dubard and John Rau

**Also Present:** Rhonda Conley, Phillipe Jordi and A\_\_\_\_\_

Terney made a motion seconded by Silk to accept the minutes of 1/28/19 as written.

**VOTE 4 YES 0 NO**

**INVOICES-None**

**ANNOUNCEMENTS AND CORRESPONDENCE**

**Daggett Homes:** There are several affordable homes available through IHT at the Daggett Street Project in Vineyard Haven.

**Housing Choice:** Decided not to send letters to state reps in support of Gov. Baker's new voting proposal of 50% plus 1 at town meeting due to possible negative affect on housing support.

**NEW BUSINESS**

**IHT Garage Conversion/Other:** Jordi presented an idea in practice in Los Angeles of converting garages into apartments being propagated by United Dwelling. The concept is that a homeowner leases the garage to an entity that retro fits into a bedroom apartment and manages the rental unit. The homeowner gets a small lease fee from the entity. Jordi's other concept is modular designed units that can be placed on properties. This would require a minimum amount of units to make cost effect. Other cost would be septic and utilities. Jordi's idea is that the homeowner leases a portion of the property to IHT who put up the modular and manage. This would require building bylaw changes and also begs the questions of how the units would be handled upon sale or transfer of property deed. The committee was concerned with complications and feasibility of the plan.

**UPDATES**

**Letter of Agreement:** IHT counsel reviewing.

**Fisher Homesite Lot:** No report

**Short Term Rental Use Committee:** No report

**Bylaw Changes:** Conley went over final changes the Planning Board decided to make and those did not make (see attached).

**ONGOING BUSINESS**

**16 Old Courthouse Rd.:** Silk stated that Doug Ruskin is working on architectural plans. Jordi stated shovel in the ground ready by July 2020. A complete report is to be given at next meeting.

Plaque, not monument, discussion continued with several members debating that there should be a plaque at Scott's Grove. Mike and Rhonda will work on wording and pricing. Further discussion tabled until next meeting.



affordable, year-round housing in all larger developments. This section also enables families that own large parcels of land to use those parcels as family compounds containing several dwelling units without subdividing their land into building lots. In this bylaw, wherever occupancy is restricted to residents of West Tisbury, **such restriction shall mean island residents to the extent allowed under the Fair Housing Rules** that the Affordable Housing Committee, the Planning Board, and owners of rental units shall allow occupancy by any resident of Martha's Vineyard, but shall, to the extent practical, give first preference to residents of West Tisbury.

#### 4.4-1 Dwelling Unit Densities Permitted by Right

The following densities of residential structures are permitted by right in all districts.

- A. The number of dwelling units on a parcel allowed by right is determined by dividing the total acreage of buildable land (as defined in the bylaw) by the minimum lot size in the district. This applies to all parcels in the Town with the exception of lots created in an open space subdivision (see Article V). Any proposal involving more than two dwelling units shall be subject to Site Plan Review by the Planning Board, unless it is being reviewed as a subdivision. The Planning Board shall apply the criteria, standards, and requirements in Article V, Open Space Development, in reviewing such an application. In no case shall the number of dwelling units permitted by right on a parcel exceed the number that would have been permitted if the lot had been proposed for division as either an "Approval Not Required" land division or a subdivision under the Rules and Regulations for the Subdivision of Land, including consideration of the adequacy of the road or roads providing access to the parcel.
- B. One single-family dwelling (without an accessory apartment) plus one subordinate dwelling (**no change from subordinate thru out**) not exceeding 1000 square feet, shall be permitted on lots that meet the requirements of (1.) or (2.) below. Unenclosed porches shall be considered non-habitable space and shall not count toward the calculation of subordinate dwelling floor area. In addition, a screened porch of 15% or less of the floor area of the subordinate dwelling shall not count toward the 1000 sq. ft. maximum.
  1. Lots in existence on the effective date of this bylaw (May 24, 2000) that comply with the minimum lot size in the district, unless a subordinate dwelling has been prohibited by the terms of a subdivision approval.
  2. Lots created after the effective date of this bylaw, provided that they are at least 1.5 times the minimum lot size for the district.

Either the principal dwelling or subordinate dwelling may be constructed first, provided that the total floor area of one of the dwellings does not exceed 1000 square feet.

The setback requirements for a structure which contains or is a subordinate dwelling shall be the same as for principal dwellings.

Subordinate dwellings to be constructed on lots which have at least double the minimum area requirements of the relative zoning district will be exempt from the 1000 sq. ft. floor area restrictions.

- C. In the RU District, a lot may contain one or more seasonal camps in addition to a subordinate dwelling only if the lot contains at least three additional acres for each such seasonal camp. No lot shall contain more than three seasonal camps.

#### 4.4-2 Second-story Apartments in the MB District

Second story apartments over non-residential uses are permitted in the MB District either by right subject to Site Plan Review, or by Special Permit, depending on the structure's overall proposed floor area (see Section 3.1-1).

Second story apartments shall not be counted toward the 3,500 sq. ft. maximum floor area for non-residential structures in the MB District, (as specified in the Dimensional Table, p. ~~9~~ **13**). For every one-bedroom or two-bedroom apartment constructed, the maximum permitted floor area for the ground floor non-residential use may be increased by 900 square feet per apartment, (including an interior stair to access the apartment(s)), up to a maximum of 5,300 square feet. The maximum floor area of the entire building

(including apartments) shall not be more than 7,000 sq. ft. Such apartments shall be subject to the occupancy restrictions described

in Section 4.4-4, provided that if any apartment is occupied by seasonal employees, such employees must be employed on the same premises. If two apartments are constructed, at least one shall be restricted as affordable housing. The minimum floor area of such apartments shall be as follows:

- A. **Studio** apartment minimum: **300** square feet
- B. One bedroom apartment minimum: **400** ~~600~~ square feet
- C. **Two bedroom apartment minimum: 600 square feet**

#### **4.4-3 Dwelling Unit Densities Allowed by Special Permit**

##### **A. Affordable Accessory Apartments**

In order to help provide affordable year-round rental housing within the context of West Tisbury's predominantly single-family home character, and to provide an opportunity for supplemental income to senior citizens and other homeowners in West Tisbury, who might otherwise find it difficult to remain in their homes due to increasing energy and maintenance costs and/or concerns about security and health, one apartment may be allowed by Special Permit from the ZBA as an accessory use to a single-family dwelling, on any sized lot, subject to the following conditions:

1. The lot, dwelling and apartment shall be in single ownership.
2. The maximum rental rates of accessory apartments shall be established annually by the **Dukes County Regional Housing Authority/Affordable Housing Committee** and set forth in the Affordable Housing Committee Implementation Guidelines.
3. Any unit **accessory apartment** which is rented is subject to the occupancy restrictions in Section 4.4-4.
4. Attached accessory apartments shall occupy a maximum of 800 square feet and a minimum of 300 square feet. The outward appearance of a residence containing an attached accessory apartment shall conform to that of a single-family residence with only one main entrance on the front or street side of the structure. Additional entrances shall be designed to ensure compatibility with the goal of retaining the appearance of a single-family residence.
5. Detached accessory apartments shall occupy a maximum of 800 square feet and a minimum of 300 square feet as a free standing unit or within an otherwise non-habitable structure such as a garage or barn.

6. Any lot with a residence and an accessory apartment shall contain at least ten thousand square feet of buildable land per bedroom, ***or an enhanced septic system.***
7. Accessory Apartments shall not access the non-habitable portion of the structure from the interior of the apartment.
- ~~8. A lot may contain either an accessory apartment or a detached bedroom, unless its area is twice the minimum lot size in that district, in which case it may have both.~~
8. ***If the accessory apartment is being occupied by the owner, family member or caregiver, the primary dwelling may only be rented affordably as defined in the Affordable Housing Guidelines.***

**PB language changed #8 to *At no time shall both the primary residence and affordable accessory apartment be rented at market rate.***

**B. Multi-Family Housing by Special Permit (This section completely PB work.)**

At the sole discretion of the Planning Board as Special Permit granting authority, upon a finding that the proposed dwelling units are consistent with the Town of West Tisbury Master Plan and provide needed housing for Town residents, ***and understanding the value of creativity in developing new housing***, a Special Permit may be granted allowing any combination of residences or apartments where the density exceeds the standards in Subsection 4.4-1 (A), ***and allowing building height up to 32 feet***, provided that: ~~the following criteria are met: if two dwelling units are proposed, both shall be restricted as affordable housing as defined in this bylaw; if three dwelling units are proposed, then at least 75% of the units shall be restricted as affordable housing and subject to the terms and limitations of a covenant imposed by the Affordable Housing Committee of a Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Needs Covenant granted to the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority pursuant to the provisions of St. 2004, C 445, at the sole discretion of the Affordable Housing Committee, and that the total number of dwelling units in any single building may not exceed four.~~

1. ***At least 25% of the bedrooms shall be in units that are restricted as affordable housing subject to the terms and limitations of a covenant imposed by the Affordable Housing Committee***
2. ***All affordable units created must be for year-round housing.***
3. ***No further sub-division will be allowed.***

***In making its determination to grant a special permit, the Planning Board shall consider the following:***

1. ***Neighborhood character and architectural design***
2. ***Impact on neighborhood roads and traffic***
3. ***Alternate best use of land as agriculture or conservation***
4. ***Transportation, bike path, access***
5. ***Visitability standards***
6. ***Affordability Rule of Thumb***

For any dwelling units approved under this Section 4.4-3B, the lot shall contain at least ten thousand square feet of buildable land per bedroom, unless an enhanced septic treatment system is approved by the Board of Health.

**4.4-4 Occupancy Restrictions on Apartments**

In order to reserve available housing for those most in need of it (year-round residents of West Tisbury and Martha's Vineyard and seasonal employees of local businesses), the following occupancy restrictions apply to the rental of apartments allowed under the provisions of Sections 4.4-2 and 4.4-3 above.

- A. The dwelling units described above may be rented only to the following occupants:
1. Persons ~~domiciled on Martha's Vineyard year-round~~ and eligible to rent affordable **year-round** housing as defined in this bylaw, as demonstrated by income, residency, and other documentation required by the Affordable Housing Committee.
  2. ~~In owner-occupied buildings and/or properties only (including mixed use buildings and properties),~~ Persons employed full-time on Martha's Vineyard during the summer season, as demonstrated by a letter from an employer, current pay stubs, or other proof of employment.
  3. Persons who intend to qualify under Subsections 1 or 2 above **must be qualified as affordable renters by Dukes County Regional Housing Authority through a completed application. Owners must** ~~who~~ sign an affidavit stating that intention and submit proof of compliance within 30 days of occupancy of the dwelling unit.
  4. ***If not rented may be used by owner's family members and/or a family caregiver.***

- B. To prove compliance with the above requirements, the owner of regulated apartments shall file the following with the Zoning Inspector:

Prior to the issuance of an occupancy permit for the apartment and within thirty days of any change in ownership of the premises, an affidavit attesting to the owner's understanding of the occupancy restrictions of this Section 4.4-4 and intention to comply with these requirements.

- C. ***The owners of regulated apartments shall report to the Affordable Housing Committee annually the status of the affordable accessory apartment.***

1. On or before ~~January 31~~ **July 15** of each year, the names of lessees of the apartments claiming to be ~~year-round domiciliaries of Martha's Vineyard, together with copies of their year-round leases and their driver's licenses. Any such lease shall clearly state that year-round occupancy of the apartment is a condition of the lease.~~ **owners will receive from the Affordable Housing Committee current affordable housing certification and documentation to be signed by the apartment owner and tenant. These forms are to be returned to the Affordable Housing Committee within 30 days of receipt along with copies of a signed year-round lease. If a lease is not included, an explanation must be enclosed. (PB language change-works better)**
2. Failure to comply with the requirements of this Section 4.4-4 ~~(B)~~ shall constitute a violation of this bylaw, subjecting the violator to all applicable fines and penalties as provided in Subsection 10.23 (A). A lessee who fails to comply with the provisions of this Section shall be considered to be in violation of this bylaw. Failure to comply with the provisions of this section shall also be grounds for revocation of the certificate of occupancy for the dwelling unit, unless the owner makes a good faith attempt to evict tenants who do not comply with the conditions of this Section.
3. Such income verification documentation as may be required by the Affordable Housing Committee.

- D. This Section 4.4-4 shall apply to all apartments created after the effective date of this provision (May 24, 2000) and to all apartments created previously that were not in compliance with applicable restrictions on occupancy in existence when they were created. All other pre-existing apartments shall come into compliance with this Section 4.4-4 on or before January 1, 2005. Apartments created in violation of

applicable zoning bylaws at the time of their creation shall be granted amnesty from penalties for such zoning violations, provided that:

1. They were created prior to June 1, 1999;
2. They comply with applicable state building code provisions; and
3. They are registered with the Zoning Inspector prior to January 1, 2010.

#### 4.4-5 Employee Dormitories

Single-family and two-family dwellings and mixed-use buildings may be used as employee dormitories for up to eight seasonal residents who satisfy the requirements of Section 4.4-4(A) (2), provided that such dwellings are either owner-occupied or managed by a resident manager employed by one or more of the businesses which employ the residents, that adequate provision is made to monitor and enforce restrictions on noise, parking, and other conditions that may be imposed through the Special Permit process, and that the Board of Health approves of such use of the premises.

#### 4.4-6 Affordable Housing Requirement (**did not change to any division of land by whatever means**)

In any subdivision containing three or more lots developed over any five year period, at least 20% (**did not raise to 25%**) of the lots shall qualify as affordable housing as defined in this bylaw, and shall be subject to the terms and limitations of a covenant imposed by the Affordable Housing Committee ~~or a Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Needs Covenant granted to the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority~~ **or a covenant, deed rider, ground lease or other form or restriction approved by the Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines** pursuant to the provisions of St. 2004, C.445, at the sole discretion of the Affordable Housing Committee. Fractional units of less than .5 shall be rounded down and .5 or more shall be rounded up. By Special Permit, the Planning Board may exempt from this requirement lots created for the use of family members, if it finds that suitable resale restrictions are in place.

#### 4.4-7 Homesite Lots

The Town establishes this section to allow the construction of individual residences on lots that do not satisfy minimum lot size requirements, provided that:

- the lot is approved by the **Planning** Board as a Homesite Lot;
- the lot's purchase price is established by the Affordable Housing Committee;
- the lot shall be owned or leased by an Eligible Purchaser or Eligible Lessee, as defined herein, who meets the qualification of the Affordable Housing Committee guidelines in effect at the time of filing of the necessary Special Permit application;
- the owner of the lot is granted a special permit from the Zoning Board of Appeals to build a single-family dwelling for owner occupancy as prescribed in this bylaw;
- and the owner of the lot grants an Affordable Housing Covenant burdening said lot to the Town of West Tisbury, in the form utilized by the Town of West Tisbury at the time of filing the special permit application, and records said covenant in the Dukes County Registry of Deeds at the time the special permit is granted, or, at the sole discretion of the Affordable Housing Committee, ~~grants a Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Covenant to the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority~~ **a covenant, deed rider, ground lease, or other form of restriction approved by the Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines** pursuant to the provisions of St. 2004, C.445.

A Homesite Lot must otherwise meet the requirement of all applicable building and zoning laws and all applicable land use, environmental, wetlands, health or other federal, state or local laws, bylaws, rules and regulations, in effect at the time of filing the special permit application and at the time the special permit is granted.

A. Creation of Homesite Lots:

Provided that the proposed Homesite Lot or Lots conform to all conditions in the definition of Homesite Lot, Homesite Lots may be created by:

1. The Town from land owned by or donated to the municipality;
2. a property owner from a lot created by a Planning Board approved subdivision of a larger lot containing more than the minimum acreage required by Article IV of this zoning bylaw, provided that the remaining lot meets minimum lot size requirements as set forth in Article IV. If more than one Homesite Lot is created, the remaining lot shall be at least the minimum acreage required by Article IV of this zoning bylaw multiplied by the total number of Homesite Lots;
3. A property owner of existing lot which does not satisfy minimum lot size requirements of the zoning bylaw and is not protected as a non-conforming lot.

B. Distribution of Homesite Lots:

1. Homesite Lots created by the Town shall be awarded by lottery, limited to Eligible Purchasers or Eligible Lessees as defined herein. Such lottery shall be held at a public meeting of the Board of Selectmen.
2. Homesite Lots created by a property owner shall be limited to Eligible Purchasers or Eligible Lessees as defined herein. Selection of the Eligible Purchaser or Eligible Lessees shall, at the option of the property owner, be made by the property owner or by lottery to be held at a public meeting of the Board of Selectmen.
3. Homesite Lots may be sold or donated to a non-profit organization, which organization may hold the lot for resale or lease without profit. Any such sale or lease may only be made to an Eligible Purchaser or Eligible Lessee selected by lottery to be held at a public meeting of the Board of Selectmen.

C. Initial Conditions for Homesite Lots:

1. Size of a Homesite Lot: A newly created Homesite Lot (created under Section 4.4-7A 1. and 2. above) may be less than three (3) acres in size but not less than one (1) acre and must have the approval of the Planning Board as a Homesite Lot. A Homesite Lot on an existing lot which does not satisfy minimum lot size requirements of the zoning bylaw and is not protected as a non-conforming lot (Section 4.4-7A 3., above) shall contain at least 10,000 square feet of buildable land area per bedroom and satisfy other applicable Board of Health requirements.
2. Cost of a Homesite Lot: The maximum purchase price or lease amount of Homesite Lots (improved or unimproved) shall be established annually by the Affordable Housing Committee and set forth in the Affordable Housing Committee ~~Implementation~~ Guidelines (took out guidelines throughout.).



3. Recipient of a Homesite Lot: a Homesite Lot may only be created for a recipient who is an Eligible Purchaser or Eligible Lessees qualified under the Affordable Housing Committee ~~Implementation~~ Guidelines.
4. Special Permit from Zoning Board of Appeals: The ZBA may approve a Special Permit for a substandard lot to be buildable as a Homesite Lot provided that the following standards and criteria are met:
  - a. The proposed lot has been approved as a potential Homesite Lot by the Planning Board;
  - b. The purchase price of the Homesite Lot has been established and posted;
  - c. The proposed Homesite Lot satisfies all Town zoning and conservation requirements in effect at the time of application, with the exception of lot size;
  - d. The proposed Homesite Lot is fully compliant with the Town Board of Health rules and regulations in effect at the time of application;
  - e. The proposed Homesite Lot is available for purchase or lease only to an Eligible Purchaser or Eligible Lessee as defined herein, and approved by the Affordable Housing Committee. Such eligibility shall be **income qualified through the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority application approved by the Affordable Housing Committee. Dukes County Regional Housing Committee shall certify in writing eligibility income level. certified in writing by the Affordable Housing Committee;**
  - f. The proposed Homesite Lot shall be subject to terms and limitations in accordance with the perpetual Affordable Housing Covenant approved by the Affordable Housing Committee in effect at the time of filing the special permit application, or, at the sole discretion of the Affordable Housing Committee, the proposed Homesite Lot shall be subject to the terms and limitations of a ~~Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Needs Covenant~~ granted **covenant, deed rider, ground lease or other form of restriction approved by the Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines**, pursuant to the provisions of St. 2004, C.445; and
  - g. The proposed Homesite Lot may be subject to additional conditions imposed by the Zoning Board of Appeals to assure that the provisions of the Zoning Bylaw are met.

D. Use, Resale and Transfer of Homesite Lots;

The use, resale and transfer of each Homesite Lot created pursuant to this section of the bylaws shall be governed by a) the Affordable Housing Covenant ~~or the Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Needs Covenant~~ **or a covenant, deed rider, ground lease or other form of restriction approved by the Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines** recorded at the time the special permit is granted, b) the West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines in effect and as revised from time to time at the discretion of said Committee, and c) in the case of a Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Needs Covenant, the rules and regulations of the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority pertaining to said covenants under the authority of St. 2004, C.445. The Affordable Housing Covenant and the Guidelines shall be enforceable by the Town of West Tisbury, or its designee, and shall limit, in part, the following:

1. The initial cost of the land;
2. The time within which to secure a building permit;
3. The use of the property to one dwelling, which shall be the owner's/lessee's primary residence;

4. The maximum allowable rental time per year;
5. The rental guidelines and exceptions, if any;
6. The resale value to an affordable formula; and
7. The resale or transfer to Eligible Purchasers/Lessees and heirs, or family members for whom the property is their primary residence as further defined in the Affordable Housing Covenant.

●To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 5.5-2, Permanent Preservation of Open Space Land, by **striking** deleted language and highlighting proposed language in **bold italic**:

#### 5.5-2 Permanent Preservation of Open Space Land

All land required to be set aside as open space in connection with any Open Space Development shall be so noted on any approved plans and shall be ~~protected by a permanent restriction in the title to the land of the type described in~~ **permanently restricted under either** G.L. Section 31, Chapter 184, **of Chapter 736 of the acts of 1985. In the case of G.L. Section 31, Chapter 184, the restriction shall conform to the requirements of the statute, as they may be amended, and** to be held by the Town of West Tisbury, the Commonwealth of Massachusetts, or a non-profit conservation organization qualified to hold tax-deductible conservation easements under Section 170(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. **In the case of Chapter 736 of the Acts of 1985, the property interest shall be held by the Martha's Vineyard Land Bank.** ~~Any~~ **restrictions or management plans** shall specify the permitted uses of the restricted land, which may include accessory uses such as utilities, driveways, and roads servicing the development, as well as the primary open space uses that protect and maintain the land's conservation value. ~~The~~ **Such restrictions or management plans** may permit, but the Planning Board may not require ~~that the restriction permit,~~ public access or access by residents of the development to the protected open space land.

#### Section 8.5-4 Pools:

Fire Protection: An accessible and functional standpipe is required for pools containing more than 7500 gallons of water with the design, placement and operation to be approved by the Chilmark Fire Chief.

●To see if the Town will vote to amend Section 14.1 Definitions of the zoning bylaws by adding the following:

#### Section 14.1 Definitions **(Did not include all definitions requested)**

**Affordable Housing Covenant:** A Covenant which restricts the use, resale and transfer of a Homesite Lot, which includes but is not limited to a resale value cap based on the value of the property, including improvements thereto, which ensures that in the event of resale the property will remain affordable in perpetuity to other Eligible Purchasers. ***In no event shall the resale price be greater than the purchase price for which a credit worthy eligible purchaser of the appropriate household size appropriated for the premises earning no more than the area median income level stated within the covenant can afford.*** The Town or its designee shall enforce the Covenant.

**Above definition not used stayed with old definition.**

**Martha's Vineyard Affordable Housing Needs Covenant:** A housing covenant created, administered and enforced by the Dukes County Regional Housing Authority, as agent of the Town of West Tisbury, pursuant to the authority granted by "An act authorizing Martha's Vineyard affordable housing covenants", St. 2004, c. 445 (approved December 30, 2004)(the "Act"). Said covenant created under the Act shall run with the land in perpetuity, and shall be executed by or on behalf of the owner of the land appropriate to: (a) limiting the use of

all or part of the land to occupancy by persons or families of middle income in either rental or other housing, (b) restricting the resale price of all or part of the property in order to ensure its affordability by future middle income purchasers, or (c) in any way limiting or restricting the use or enjoyment of all or any portion of the land for the purpose of encouraging or ensuring the creation or retention of the rental and other housing for occupancy by middle income persons and families.

~~**Affordable Housing Covenant:** A Covenant which restricts the use, resale and transfer of a Homesite Lot, which includes but is not limited to a resale value cap based on the value of the property, including improvements thereto, which ensures that in the event of resale the property will remain affordable in perpetuity to other Eligible Purchasers. The Town or its designee shall enforce the Covenant.~~

Changed this definition to include affordable but did not distinguish what is affordable.

**Affordable Accessory Apartment:** A dwelling unit occupying a maximum of 800 square feet and a minimum of 300 square feet, attached to or within an existing dwelling unit or as a free standing unit or within an otherwise non-habitable structure such as a garage or shed.

Added this definition

**Affordability Rule of Thumb:** Individuals or families who pay more than 30% of their gross income for housing are considered cost burdened. Housing costs include rent and utilities or ownership principle, interest, taxes and insurance.

**Section 8.5-4 "Pools" Fire Protection:** An accessible and functional standpipe is required for pools containing more than 7500 gallons of water with the design, placement and operation to be approved by the Chilmark Fire Chief.

**Seasonal:**

1. Relating to or happening at a particular period in a year.
2. Occurring at or dependent on a particular season.

**Year-round:**

1. Continuing, available, used, etc., throughout the year.
2. Occurring, effective. Employed, staying or operation for the full year: not seasonal

These definitions the AHC would like to see included for verification of what is affordable and what is community housing. They were not included.

**Affordable Housing:** Housing units priced at a level determined by the West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee to be appropriate for rental or purchase exclusively by persons who will make such housing their primary residence (defined as their actual year-round domicile) and whose annual household income is not more than 80% of the Dukes County median income, as established by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. To qualify as affordable housing, the units must be subject to permanent deed restrictions that the West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee deems adequate to ensure that tenants and future owners will continue to meet income eligibility and residency requirements.

**Community Housing:** Housing units priced at a level determined by the West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee to be appropriate for rental or purchase exclusively by persons who will make such housing their primary residence (defined as their actual year-round domicile) and whose annual household income is not more than 81-150% of the Dukes County median income, as established by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development. To qualify as community housing, the units must be subject to permanent deed restrictions that the West Tisbury Affordable Housing Committee deems adequate to ensure that tenants and future owners will continue to meet income eligibility and residency requirements.

**Community Eligible Purchaser/Lessee:** Any private purchaser or lessee over the age of 18 who meets the Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines in effect at the time of purchase or lease of a Homesite Lot, and whose total household adjusted gross income is not more than 81% to 150% of median income for Dukes County as established by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development.

**Affordable Eligible Purchaser/Lessee:** Any private purchaser or lessee over the age of 18 who meets the Affordable Housing Committee Guidelines for affordable housing in effect at time of purchase or lease of a homesite lot or other offered deed restricted property at 80% or below median income

Deed Rider: See "Covenant"

Ground Lease: The leasing of property being held as affordable or community housing with restrictions on the property as in a covenant. See covenant.

Homesite Lot: A parcel of land which has the approval of the Planning Board as a Homesite Lot for use as affordable and or community housing, as further defined in Section 4.4.

Nonconforming Lot: Any use lawfully existing prior to and at the time of the adoption or amendment of this bylaw or any preceding bylaw, which use is not permitted by or does not conform with the permitted use provisions of this bylaw for the district in which it is located. See Article XI. Though the measurements may not meet buildable land, it may under special permit meet homesite lot requirements.